BACK in 1908 the Gisborne Borough Council was having trouble in obtaining

stone for its roading requirements, Contemporary reports of Council meetings
show that this trouble had persisted for years, but councillors had now resolved
that at last something definite must be done, along the lines of the Council’s
striking out for itself rather than continuing to rely on outside contractors. The
moving spirits in this resolution were Councillor Williams and the Mayor,
W. J. Townley. Their ideas were that the Council should have a quarry and/or

a tramway of its own.

Councillors were informed of various
sources of supply of both stone and gravel,
and made several visits of inspection. The
quality of rock in the various sites handy
to Gisborne proved disappointing, so the
Council resolved to obtain supplies of
gravel from the Waipaoa River at Kaitera-
tahi, 13 miles from town on the railway
line, and to continue to look further afield
for stonc.

At this point it is perhaps desirable to
explain that, while gravel was used for
the base course of roads, it was necessary
to top this with crushed stone, or road
metal, as it is called in New Zealand, to
provide a compacted surface.

The Cook County Council owned a stone
quarry at Patutahi, some 13 miles west of
Gisborne, and the two Councils discussed
the feasibility of their jointly constructing
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a tramway from the quarry to Gisborne.
Meanwhile the Borough Council entered
into an agreement with the County Council
to purchase stone from Patutahi. To haul
this stone, a Straker Waggon (a steam
motor wagon) was purchased for £810,
and a trailer to hold 4 cubic yards was
built by Borough Council staff.

Estimated costs of operating the wagon
make interesting reading nowadays, the
wecekly figures being: Driver's wages, £4;
fuel and oil, £1 9s.; repairs, 10s.; deprecia-
tion at 10 percent, £1 14s.; and interest on
capital at 5 percent, 17s.—a total of £8 10s,
per week.

The Straker Waggon was duly delivered
on 26 September 1908, but some little delay
was experienced in getting it into the
council yard, by the blowing of one of the
joints. However, this was put right, and a
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Photagraph: Mrs Macdonald (courtesy R. Hepburn)

The Gisborne Borough Council’s Straker Steam Waggon No. 1 with a trailer crossing
the Rosbuck Road bridge over the Taruheru River. The lifting span on the bridge
was to permit a tug and barges to pass to and from meat freezing works upstream.

trial of the machine was given in town,
followed by a couple of trips to the quarry.
On the second trip, the up journey took
24 hours and the down journey 3 hours.
This was by the wagon only, without
trailer.

By the following month, the Straker
Waggon was on the road every day, some-
times making two return trips in a day.
It continued working for some time, appar-
ently fairly satisfactorily, hauling about
four cubic yards per trip, and causing a
certain amount of damage to the county
roads and other property in the process.
There was, for example, a claim in January
1909 that the claimant’s horse had taken
fright at the wagon, bolted, and completely
broken his express and harness,

This steam wagon operation was con-
sidered expensive by comparison with
tramway operation. In fact, the wagon was
finding difficulty in hauling 4 yards of
stone per trip, let alone 20 yards per day
as the Council had been so readily assured
it would. In addition, the trailer’s tyres
were coming off.

Meanwhile, during 1909, the Borough
Council was opening up a quarry at Gentle
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Annie, some distance to the south-west of
the Patutahi Quarry, and on 21 October it
was resolved to negotiate with the Cook
County Council regarding the joint con-
struction of a roadside tramway between
Gisborne and the new quarry. However,
it was not until the following June that
the County Council received an application
from the Borough Council for a licence 1o
lay a tramway on the county roads [rom
the quarry to the boundary of the Gisborne
Borough near the Stanley Road railway
crossing. After advertising its intention to
issue a licence, the County Council con-
sidered a protest lodged by ratepayers after
a meeting at Patutahi on 3 September. The
Council, however, issued the licence a few
days after its meeting on 16 September, for
a term of five years. By this time the
Gentle Annic Quarry was in operation, and
metal was being carted into Gisborne by
the Straker Waggon and horse-drawn
Wagons.

The Borough Engineer, Mr. A. |. Pat
terson, had prepared a report on the rela-
tive costs and merits of operating the
proposed tramway with horse traction and
one-yard trucks on 14 Ib. rails, or with
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TRAMWAY — GISBORNE TO GENTLE ANNIE QUARRY.

steam traction and 14-yard trucks on 18 lb.
rails. Using costs based on a maximum of
12,000 yards and a minimum of 8,000 yards
annually, the report concluded in favour of
steam haulage for the maximum figure and
of horse traction for the minimum figure.
A steam tramway would incur higher
standing charges for interest, depreciation,
and repairs. The report also pointed out

86

the greater all-weather availability of a
steam line,

: As soon as the tramway licence was
issued, Mr. Patterson wasted no time in
commencing construction from both ends
of the 12-mile line. Rails weighing 18 and
20 Ib. per yard were laid to a gauge of
2ft. 6in. on sleepers supplied partly from
local sources and partly from Australia.
These sleepers were a mixed lot. There
were jarrah sleepers from Australia, totara
from the Kiripaka Sawmilling Co., and
white pine from a contractor in the Motu
country (Mr Smith). It is not known why
jarrah sleepers had to be purchased when
local sleepers were available. The former
of course would last much longer, but for
a term of five years this advantage would
not be significant. The 400 tons of rails
required were supplied by Messrs Reuben
Wood & Wood Ltd., Sydney, and shipped
on the ss. Mimiro. They had to be tran-
shipped at Auckland as the supplicrs were
unable to have them delivered direct to
Gisborne,

It is on record that the Engineer’s esti-
mate of the cost of the line, with rolling
stock, was £12,500; and it is also recorded
that the Mayor, Mr Lysnar, who was away
at the time, was concerned that the
Borough Councillors should have gone
ahead with the line in his absence. Pro-
gress, however, could not be delayed on
this account. Reports of the council meet-
ing on 16 December 1910 reveal that the
Mayor and most of the councillors were
at loggerheads, and that the meeting ended
with two-thirds of the councillors walking
out and leaving the floor to the Mayor and
two of his supporters.

The steam locomotive for use on the
tramway arrived at Gisborne on 26 Janu-
ary 1911 by ship, the only way it could
arrive in those days. It was crected and
tested, and then used in tramway con-
struction work, which was completed
during the following June, although on
4 May a trainload of metal, totalling 33
cubic yards, was brought right through
from Gentle Annie to Gisborne, using the
entire fleet of 20 steel hopper wagons, and
no doubt the brake van, Prior to this it
appeared that the locomotive and the
Straker worked in conjunction, as it is
reported that in April metal was delivered
to Matawhero by tramway and hauled the
rest of the way to Gisborne by the steam
wagon.
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om the R. Hephburn Collection

The Gisborne Borough Council's metal distribution depot in Childers Road in March 1913.
The saddle-tank locomotive is “Jack™ after it was fitted with a trailing truck and a tender.

The route laid out for the tramway pro-
vided for economical haulage. The first
four miles from the quarry were on a
downgrade. The remaining eight miles were
level, except for a pinch at 1 in 25 near
the Awapuni lagoon.

At the Borough Council meeting on 17
May 1911, Cr. Darton proposed that an
Edison battery car be obtained for the line.
It had been pointed out that an additional
engine would be required, so he suggested
that getting one of these cars would be a
good test of their suitability for the muni-
cipal tramway system, which ultimately
was operated with this type of car. The
proposal was defeated, but it was decided
to order another steam locomotive. This
duly arrived on 23 March 1912, followed
shortly afterwards by 20 more 4-wheel
trucks without hoppers, supplied by Robert
Hudson & Co., Leeds, England, at a price
of £8 5s. each. The hoppers were con-
structed by Borough Council staff. These
trucks, similar to those already in use, were
by today’s standards, real midgets, with
overall dimensions of 6ft. 9in. in length
and 3ft. 7in. in width. The wheelbase was
2ft, 9in., and the wheels 14 inches in
diameter. Couplings between vehicles were
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simple. Each vehicle had a hook at cach
end, and a link was used to connect
adjacent hooks.

Four bogie brake wagons were asscmbled
in June 1913, and put in commission when
their hoppers, two or three to a wagon,
were completed.,

At the Gentle Annie quarry, which had
been formally opened on 25 November
1910, stone was being quarried from a face
300 feet above the road. The crushing
plant was located on a terrace ten feet
below the quarry. The crusher, one of
Baxter's improved knapping-motion stone-
breakers with a capacity of about 50 yards
per day, was driven by a 27 h.p. National
benzine engine, the crushed stone being
conveyed down an inclined tramway to the
loading bins on a pair of steel tracks oper-
ating on the gravity system, the tracks
branching out into four at the foot of the
incline. These tracks were laid with rails
of 15 lb. per yard.

Once the tramway had been completed,
all concerned were pleased with its opera-
tion, both Borough and County Councils
being kept supplied with their require-
ments. Minor hold-ups of course were ex-
perienced until the second locomotive
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arrived; broken driving springs, for ex-

ample, not to mention derailments. .

The tramway from the guarty was Origi-
nally built a8 far as Stanley Road in Gis-
borne, but in September 1911 the NZR
laid down a crossing over the railway line.
A further three-quarters of a mile of track
was then laid to the Council yard, the first
complete journey from quarry to vard being
run on Thursday 14 September. Installa-
tion of the crossing was subject o &
number of conditions. The Council was
required to pay the cost of construction
and maintenance, and a rental of £1 per
annum, Stop blocks were to be provided
and kept locked except when the crossing
was in use, and the crossing was not to be

SR e e,
Photsgraph: B, Hepbarn, Jawenry 1964
Site of the Gentle Annie quarry showing
the worked face and the site of the incline
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down to the valley floor worked by steam unless signalled at the

Council's expense, the Railways Depart-
ment reserving the right to appoint a signal-
man. whose wages were 1o be paid by the !
Council.
In the metal distribution yard at Gis
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borne, an electric crane was  installed,
power  being  provided by two  Mirrlees
diesel engines. It is reported that these
engines, although operating on diesel fuel
ail, could be operated on crude oil, as it
was hoped that oil would be found during
the drilling operations at Whatatutu. The
Gisborne Oil Company's well theve had
procduced several barrels of oil a day in
1886, but since then oil in payable guanti-
lies has not been found,
Photograph: P. F. Dyer, 1959 Following the installation of a second
A view of the wamway formation leading  pysher at the quarry, and the laying of
away from the foot of the incline. several sidings along the line—at Te Arai
Road, Hall's at Patutahi, Dawson's on the
Patutahi Road, and at a gravel pit on the
Waipaoa River—traffic increased considers
ably, The acquisition of a third locomotive
was contemplated, but instead one of the b
two Straker Waggons that the Council now I -
owned was altered to fit the 2ft, 6in. gauge ¥ I i
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of the tramway, Judging by photographs i
of this machine taken during its road :
service, it must have had considerable ¢

overhang each side of the track after con- _'[.‘a_eg
YEIs1omn.
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or interrupted only by occasional break-
R downs, derailments, and overhauls. To a B
. P. F. Dyer, 1950 layman, some of the breakdowns sound ! Ja0-8

factorily, so far as we know, being marred ‘ b
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Locking down the site of the incline from

the quarry towards the site of the sidings

at the foot where trains were made up for
haulage to Gisborne.

]

rather alarming. For example, Jack's main
sleam pipes gave out in March 1912, the
main steam pipe casting broke in August
1912, causing three day's delay, and Anwmie,
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GENTLE AMNIE TRAMWAY , GISBORNE .

STANDARD HOPPER WAGON.
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*the second locometive, collapsed in March
1913, the front portion of ils boiler having
“beeome perished”.

Waorking of the lineside tramway caused
a certain amount of upset in other ways on
oceasions, A complaint was made al the
Barough Council meeting in MNovember
1912 that the engine crews made a prac-
tice of blowing the whistles unnecessarily
when country people in traps were en-
countered, and that one man had thereby
been put in the ditch twice, Good clean
fun, no doubt, depending on the point of
view!

Both the steam locomotives were built
by W. G. Bagnall & Co. Ltd.,, England.
Here are some of their particulars. Mo, 1
was an 040 saddle-tank built in 1911 and
named fack. With an overall length of
11ft. 9in. and a height of Bft. 0din., it
weighed 3¢ tons in working order. The
driving wheels measured 19 inches in
diameter, and the cylinders were 6 inches
in diameter by 9 inches stroke. Other
details are shown on the drawing.

Mo, 2 was a smaller locomolive weighing
only 4 tons ready for service. Built in 1912,
it had the 0-42 wheel arrangement and
side tanks, and was named Anpie. Tts
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driving wheels were & diminutive 154
inches in diameter. Overall length was
11ft. 10in. and height was 7ft. 83in. Both
locomatives worked at 150 1b. per sg. in.
boiler pressure.

The converted Straker Waggon became
locomotive Mo, 3, and was given the name
Flirt.

In July/August 1912, Jeck was converted
by Borough Couneil staff to an 0-4-2 saddle-
tank locomotive with a small tender. The
new trailing wheels were 12 inches in
diameter, and the tender, which had the
same wheelbase and wheel diameter as the
hopper trucks, was presumably built on
the frame of one of these, A steam pump
was fitted a few months later.

Flirt was withdrawn from tramway ser-
vice in December 1913, consequent upon
the quarry being reduced to one crusher,
and ahout the middle of 1915 the quarry
was  closed, the tramway subsequently
being used only between the gravel pit at
Matawhero and Gisborne. In October that
vear the Cook County Council asked the
Borough Council to remove the rails from
the road bridge over the Waipaca River
and 1o repair the planking, but the reply
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was that the trains had 1o shunt over the
bridge to get to the gravel pit siding.

At the end of 1916, the Borough Council
decided to dismantle the Gentle Aunmie
quarry plant and dispose of it, This opera:
tion, which involved temporary repaivs to
the line to allow the passage of locomalives
and trucks, was duly carried out, in the
face of the protests of those who main-
tained that there was still good stone in
the locality. However, the Council was
still in wrgent need of stone [or roading.
along with the Cook and Waikehu Coun-
ties, so arrangements were eniered into
with the embryonic Motuhora Stone Cuar-
ties Company, then about to be formed,
to sell the Company sufficient rails for
three miles of track, together with the
locomotives  Jack  and  Anpmie  and  the
hopper trucks, The Company was plan-
ning 10 open up a quarry about two miles
from the NZR railbead at Motuhora, to
which station the Gisborne-Matawai railway
was extended in 1917,

So, off went the little engines and trucks
to work for another five or six years. Some
information about this peried of their lives
is contained in the article Rails to Motuhora
by R. Hepburn in NZRO No. 81, Volume
16, Mo. 3 {1959). Although the locomotives
are believed to have burned coal during
their service on the Gemle Annie tram-
way, they were wood-burners on the Motu-
hora line. They ended their lives at Motu-
hora, where their rusting remains may still
be seen, Iying derelict in the wilderness.

The writer i indebted to Messrs R.
Hepburn and P, F. Dyer for the large
quantity of detailed information and notes
from which this article has been compiled.

Photograph: R

One of the Robert Hudson bogies with
longitudinal roller bearings and coi! springs,
abandoned at Motuhora,

Heplur
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i
Remains of the lecomotives “Annie™ (fore-

and  “Jack™  abandoned  at  the
Motuhora guarry.

Phatograph: B, Hepborn, ary 1964

Valve gear of the locomotive “Jack™ lying
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Lipturned metal hopper wagon at Motu-
hora, as used on the Gentle Anmie line. The
trap-door handle is in the “open™ position.
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